AUTHENTICATED
U.S. GOVERNMENT
INFORMATION

GPO

§200.735-12

file. Only those officials of the Com-
mission whose participation is nec-
essary for the carrying out of the pur-
pose of this Conduct Regulation may
have access to such statements and no
information may be disclosed from
them except as the Commission or the
Office of Personnel Management may
determine for good cause shown.

(d) In accordance with the require-
ments of the Ethics in Government Act
of 1978, Pub. L. 95-521, the Ethics Office
shall review the financial disclosure re-
ports filed pursuant to that Act.

(e) The Ethics Office shall examine
the statements of employment and fi-
nancial interests filed pursuant to
paragraph (a) of this section to deter-
mine whether conflicts of interest or
apparent conflicts of interest on the
part of employees exist. An employee
shall be afforded the opportunity to ex-
plain any conflict or appearance of
conflict. When the Director or Assist-
ant Director of Personnel, in consulta-
tion with appropriate superiors of the
employee involved, is unable to resolve
a conflict or appearance of conflict, he
or she shall report the matter to the
Commission through the Counselor for
the Commission designated under
§200.735-15(a).

(f) Except as otherwise provided in
paragraph (a) of this section the state-
ment of employment and financial in-
terests and supplementary statements
required of employees are in addition
to, and not in substitution for, or in
derogation of, any similar requirement
imposed by law, order or regulation.
The submission of a statement by an
employee does not permit him or her or
any other person to participate in a
matter in which his or her or the other
person’s participation is prohibited by
law, order or regulation.

(g) An employee has the right to ask
for a review through the Commission’s
grievance procedure outlined in section
771, Part II, Manual of Administrative
Regulations, of a complaint that his or
her position has been improperly in-
cluded under the provisions of this sec-
tion as one requiring the submission of

17 CFR Ch. Il (4-1-13 Edition)

a statement of employment and finan-
cial interests.

[45 FR 36064, May 29, 1980; 45 FR 40975, June
17, 1980, as amended at 73 FR 32226, June 5,
2008; 75 FR 42278, July 20, 2010; 76 FR 71450,
Nov. 18, 2011]

§200.735-12 Special Government em-
ployees.

(a) Special Government employee
means a person defined in section 18
U.S.C. 202 as a special Government em-
ployee. All of the provisions of this
Conduct Regulation are applicable to
special Government employees, except
that in specific appropriate cases the
Commission may exempt such employ-
ees from, or modify the applicability
of, any portion of any provision of the
Conduct Regulation.

(b) In no event will the Commission
waive a provision of the Conduct Regu-
lation which would permit a special
Government employee to:

(1) Use his or her Government em-
ployment for a purpose that is, or gives
the appearance of being, motivated by
the desire for private gain for himself
or another person, particularly one
with whom he or she has family, busi-
ness, or financial ties.

(2) Use inside information obtained
as a result of his or her Government
employment for private gain for him-
self or herself or another person either
by direct action on his or her part or
by counsel, recommendation, or sug-
gestion to another person, particularly
one with whom he or she has family,
business, or financial ties. For purposes
of this paragraph, inside information
means information obtained under
Government authority which has not
become part of the body of public infor-
mation.

(3) Use his or her Government em-
ployment to coerce, or give the appear-
ance of coercing, a person to provide fi-
nancial benefit to himself or herself or
another person, particularly one with
whom he or she has family, business, or
financial ties.

(4) Receive or solicit from a person
having business with the Commission
anything of value as a gift, gratuity,
loan, entertainment, or favor for him-
self or herself or another person, par-
ticularly one with whom he or she has
family, business or financial ties.
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(c) Prior to entrance on duty, each
special Government employee shall
submit to the Director of Personnel a
statement of employment and financial
interests which contains such informa-
tion as the Director of Personnel deter-
mines is relevant in the light of the du-
ties the special Government employee
is to perform and, if appropriate, the fi-
nancial disclosure report as provided
by title II of the Ethics in Government
Act of 1978, Pub. L. 95-521. It shall be
kept current throughout the period of
employment by the filing of supple-
mentary statements in accordance
with the requirements of §200.735-11(d).
Statements shall be on the official
form made available for this purpose
through the Office of Personnel.

(d) The Commission may waive the
requirement of paragraph (c) of this
section in the case of a special Govern-
ment employee who is not a consultant
or an expert, as those terms are defined
in chapter 304 of the Federal Personnel
Manual (b CFR 735.304), if the duties of
the position are determined to be at a
level of responsibility which does not
require the submission of such state-
ment to protect the integrity of the
Commission.

§200.735-13 Disciplinary and other re-
medial action.

(a) Knowing participation in a viola-
tion of this subpart by persons not
within the scope of the foregoing rules
in this subpart shall likewise be
deemed improper conduct and in con-
travention of Commission rules. Depar-
ture from any of the rules in this sub-
part by employees or special Govern-
ment employees without specific ap-
proval may be cause for appropriate re-
medial and/or disciplinary action or, in
the case of former members, employ-
ees, and special Government employ-
ees, for disqualification from appearing
and practicing before the Commission,
which may be in addition to any pen-
alty prescribed by law.

(b) When there has been a departure
from any of the rules of this subpart
without specific approval or when a
conflict of interest or an apparent con-
flict of interest on the part of an em-
ployee or special Government em-
ployee arises, the Director of Personnel
may order immediate action to end

§200.735-15

such conflict or appearance of conflict
of interest. Remedial action may in-
clude, but is not limited to (1) changes
in assigned duties; (2) divestment by
the employee or special Government
employee of his conflicting interest; (3)
disciplinary action; or (4) disqualifica-
tion for a particular assignment. Re-
medial action, whether disciplinary or
otherwise, shall be effected in accord-
ance with any applicable laws, Execu-
tive Orders, and regulations. The Di-
rector of Personnel may refer any rec-
ommended action to the Commission.
The employee may obtain review by
the Commission of any action ordered
to be taken by the Director of Per-
sonnel. During the period of review, un-
less otherwise directed by the Commis-
sion, the action ordered by the Direc-
tor of Personnel is stayed.

(c) Former members or employees
who violate the post-employment re-
striction provisions of 18 U.S.C. 207(a),
(b) or (c), which parallel the provisions
of Rule 8(a), supra, will be subject to an
administrative enforcement proceeding
as set forth in Rule 102(e) of the Com-
mission’s Rules of Practice, §201.102(e)
of this chapter, except that, when pro-
ceedings are brought to determine if
violations of post-employment restric-
tions have occurred, denial of the privi-
lege of appearing and practicing before
the Commission will be based on a find-
ing of violation of the provisions of
Rule 8(a) and 18 U.S.C. 207 (a), (b) and
(c). Procedures applicable to such ad-
ministrative proceedings are to be
found in the Commission’s Rules of
Practice, 17 CFR 201.100 et seq.

[45 FR 36064, May 29, 1980, as amended at 60
FR 32795, June 23, 1995]

§200.735-14 Employees on leave of ab-
sence.

The provisions of the rules in this
subpart relative to employees of the
Commission are applicable to employ-
ees on a leave with pay or a leave with-
out pay status other than extended
military service.

§200.735-15 Interpretive and advisory
service.

(a) The Ethics Counsel shall be des-
ignated Counselor for the Commission
and shall serve as the Commission’s
delegate to the Office of Personnel
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